
 1 

BURRILLVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Place:  Jesse M. Smith Library, Community Room 
Meeting Date:  November 29, 2011 
Meeting Time:  7:00 PM 
 
Members Present: 

James Langlois, Chairman  Barbara Schouboe, Alternate Member 
Edward Bonczek Jeffrey J. Barr, Vice Chairman  
Mark Brizard  
  

 
Members Absent: 

David Fontaine  Royal Laurent, Alternate Member 
  

 
Staff/Consultants Present: 

Michael C. Wood, Secretary Scott A. Gibbs, NEEDS, Inc. 
Timothy F. Kane, General Legal Counsel Tom Kravitz, Town Planner 
  

Others: 
Jeffrey McCormick, Director, DPW Joe Raymond, Building Official 

 
Call To Order:  
James Langlois called the meeting to order at 7:05 PM. Langlois stated that David Fontaine and Royal 
Laurent have been excused from the meeting, and Barbara Schouboe will be a voting member. 
 
Approval of Minutes: 
Jeffrey Barr made a motion to approve the minutes of the October 25, 2011 meeting.  Mark Brizard seconded 
the motion, and the vote in favor was unanimous.  
 
Invoices: 
Jeffrey Barr made a motion to approve the invoice from the Blackstone Valley Tourism Council dated 
November 7, 2011 in the amount of $3,533.76 for services rendered in regards to the Geotourism project. 
Edward Bonczek seconded the motion, and the vote in favor was unanimous.  
 
Mark Brizard made a motion to approve the invoice from Coyle Appraisal dated November 10, 2011 in the 
amount of $3,250 for preparation of conducting and preparing summary appraisals for properties in 
downtown Pascoag.  Edward Bonczek seconded the motion, and the vote in favor was unanimous.  
 
Jeffrey Barr made a motion to approve the invoice from Airhart Electric dated November 18, 2011 in the 
amount of $3,310.00 for parts and services rendered in conjunction with the repairing of street lights in the 
Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District. Edward Bonczek seconded the motion, and the vote in favor was 
unanimous.  
 
Citizens Comment: 
None 
 
Consultants Staff Report: 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Financial Report including Budgets and Audits. 
Mark Brizard referenced the report dated November 18, 2011.  Mark Brizard made a motion to receive and 
file the financial report.  Jeffrey Barr seconded the motion, and the vote in favor was unanimous.    
 



 2 

Old Business: 
 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Geotourism Project. 
Bob Billington deferred to Lilly for a presentation.  Lilly provided an overview of the evolution of the 
Geotourism project.  Lilly stated that all the Town resources were identified in the first phase of the project.  
Lilly explained that the project team then proceeded to the marketing stage including development of a 
Facebook Page, and an interactive mapping system on the Town’s web site.  The Third Phase is a 
program/packaging stage to support a PR program for Burrillville.  Billington spoke to the group, stating that 
he thinks that they have developed a comprehensive Town resource inventory, which is a precursor to 
packaging Burrillville for visitor marketing, business development, and attraction.  Billington stated that the 
project team should put a group of people together to develop concepts and ideas of what visitors can do in 
Burrillville, which can subsequently be assembled into visitor packages. Billington stated that resources from 
surrounding communities might be needed to put enough resources together to develop appealing packages 
for visitors.  
 
Mike Wood explained that he asked Bob to attend the meeting because he wasn’t sure how to go about 
selecting the participants for the packaging session.  Billington stated that owners of campgrounds, tourism 
related people, people from the business community, representatives from the Chamber of Commerce, etc. 
should be invited to the session. Billington stated that he would prefer to work in January, preferably on a 
Saturday.  A manageable committee of 8 to 12 people is in a good sized group to target.  The Agency 
requested Bob prepare a preliminary list of people from which the BRA can review and add as it sees a fit.  
The Agency members will also submit names and areas to be considered. 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Clock Tower Project. 
Tom Kravitz stated that the proposed canoe launch has been designed and is before RIDEM for permitting.  
RIDEM has requested additional information for which Joe Garlick is assembling.  
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District. 
A. Landscape Options to stabilize open-space areas in the Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District. 
Mike Wood explained that various stop-gap soil erosion mitigation measures have been put in place.  Wood 
stated that more substantive measures would be considered for next spring given that it is so late in the year.  
 
B. Shingle color for Farmer’s Market Pavilion. 
Kravitz stated that the goal is to use shingles on the new Pavilion that match the color of the shingles on the 
Library.  Kravitz explained that they know the type of shingles on the library, but not the color. Kravitz 
stated that he will take a picture and the Library shingles, and solicit colors from the contractor and 
coordinate. 
 
C.  Maintenance of lights at Tinkham Lane by Airhart Electric. 
Langlois stated that Airhart Electric has had problems with the supplier of the existing lights and ballasts, 
which is located in Canada.  Langlois indicated that there is a potential problem with the mechanism in the 
lights.  Langlois stated that he made the decision to gut the lights and replace with a standard ballast and 
metal halide bulb.  Langlois explained that all lights are now working with the exception of one.  Joe Garlick 
has taken responsibility for fixing the remaining light using Bellingham Electric. Langlois stated that it really 
came down to a case of public safety, so action had to be taken.  
 
Jeff McCormick made a presentation regarding the proposed Pavilion including parking and sidewalk 
improvements.  Jeff explained that a crushed stone area has been incorporated into the plan to allow for the 
washing-down of items.  In addition, gutters have been incorporated into the plan. Brizard referenced the 
gutters stating that 6” commercial grade gutters along with screens should be incorporated into the building.  
Changing the wash-down area to the other side of the structure was discussed.  Wood requested a vote of 
approval of the revised plans if the members of the BRA deem them acceptable.  Langlois made a motion to 



 3 

accept the plan with the modifications discussed.  Bonczek seconded the motion, and the vote in favor was 
unanimous. 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Downtown Pascoag Redevelopment District. 
Brizard referenced the municipal lot purchased by the BRA on Park Place.  Brizard inquired as to how the 
Town was going to leave the lot.  Jeff stated that in the past they used the area for snow storage.  Brizard 
asked about having four corner markers installed to delineate the property owned by the BRA.  Jeff stated 
that he has the survey work on the site along Park Place, but not for the balance of the site.  Wood stated that 
the next time that the Town has something going in the vicinity we will include survey work for the the 
parking lot site.  Brizard also asked whether the DPW maintains the trash barrels on Pascoag Main Street.  
Jeff indicated that it must be the property owners/merchants because the DPW doesn’t.  Brizard referenced 
areas where a dumpster could be placed for the merchants.  Brizard also referenced the smaller Nardelli 
Building and the unlicensed tenant in the space.  There was a discussion regarding whether a license is 
required to operate a second-hand store.   
 
Bonczek referenced the CVS property arguing that exiting the parking lot is difficult due to visual 
obstruction caused by the berm.  Langlois stated that coming down High Street is going to require a stop 
sign, which is a Town Road.  Kravitz stated that the berm at the new driveway will be brought to grade by 
the CVS contractor. 
 
New Business To Be Discussed And Acted Upon: 
Discussion, consideration, and action relative to the RIDEM grant application regarding open space project 
within Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District. 
Tom Kravitz stated that this item should come off the agenda.  Wood explained that there was an interest in 
applying for a RIDEM grant to assist the development of the Farmers Market project.  Wood stated that it 
was determined after consultation with DEM staff that the RIDEM grant program was not suitable for this 
project. 
 
Discussion, consideration, and action relative to inviting the Town Council to participate in a joint workshop 
and/or Executive Session. 
Mike Wood stated that the Town Council would like to have more involvement with the BRA so that they 
are more familiar with what the BRA is doing, and what the plans are for Pascoag. Wood stated that once the 
BRA has made some decisions regarding what it wants to do with the targeted properties in Pascoag, a 
meeting with the Town Council is warranted. We do submit detailed minutes monthly and have met with the 
Council in the past.  The BRA will leave when we have a meeting up to the “call of the chair”. 
 
Correspondence 
None 
 
General Discussion: 
Langlois stated that he met with a member of the Levy Foundation regarding possibly assisting the BRA in 
its efforts in both the Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District, and the Downtown Pascoag Redevelopment 
District.  Langlois referenced things such as signage in the District, and the Farmers Market project as 
potential projects that the Levy Foundation may have interest in assisting. 
 
Executive Session: 
 
Request for Executive Session from Michael C. Wood, Secretary, pursuant to Rhode Island Open Meeting 
Law [42-46-5 (a)(5)] for discussion and considerations related to the acquisition, sale or exchange of real 
property. 

a) Plat 175/Lot 019 (Mobil Station Property) 24 North Main Street 
b) Plat 175/Lot 025 (Apt. House, Pascoag Main) 160 Pascoag Main Street 
c) Plat 175/Lot 060 (Apt. House, Pascoag Main) 73-75 Pascoag Main Street 
d) Plat 175/Lot 061 (Vacant Building, Pascoag Main) 87-89 Pascoag Main St. 

 



 4 

James Langlois made a motion to go into Executive Session with Jeffrey Barr, Mark Brizard, Barbara 
Schouboe, and Edward Bonczek all voting in favor. 
 
James Langlois made a motion to reconvene the public portion of the meeting and to seal the minutes of the 
Executive Session with Jeffrey Barr, Mark Brizard, Edward Bonczek, and Barbara Schouboe all voting to 
support the motion.  The public portion of the meeting was reconvened in open session where it was 
announced that no votes were taken in Executive Session. 
 
 
Adjournment: 
On a motion by James Langlois seconded by Barbara Schouboe, the meeting was adjourned at 8:45 PM.  
 
 
 
Minutes approved by: 
 
 
__________________________________                                _________________________________ 
Michael C. Wood, Secretary     Date: 
 
 
    Date filed with Town Clerk:  _________________________  


